

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

ACTS AND RESOLVES

AS PASSED BY THE

One Hundred and Fourth Legislature

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

Published by the Director of Legislative Research in accordance with the Revised Statutes of 1964, Title 3, Section 164, Subsection 6.

THE KNOWLTON AND MCLEARY COMPANY
FARMINGTON, MAINE
1969

PUBLIC LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE
AS PASSED BY THE
ONE HUNDRED AND FOURTH LEGISLATURE
1969

Chapter 235

AN ACT Relating to Military Leave of Absence of Teachers.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

R. S., T. 20, § 473, sub-§ 12, additional. Section 473 of Title 20 of the Revised Statutes, as amended, is further amended by adding a new subsection 12, to read as follows:

12. Military leave of absence of teachers. Teachers who are members of the National Guard or other authorized state military or naval forces, and those teachers who are members of the Army, Air Force, Marine, Coast Guard or Naval Reserve shall be entitled to leave of absence from their respective duties, without net loss of income during periods of annual training not to exceed 17 calendar days in any calendar year specified under the National Defense Act or Armed Forces Reserve Act of 1952, provided that such teachers shall have made every reasonable effort to perform such annual training during the period when school is not in session.

Effective October 1, 1969

Chapter 236

AN ACT Providing for the Observance of Certain Legal Holidays on Monday.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

Sec. 1. R. S., T. 4, § 1051, amended. Section 1051 of Title 4 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

§ 1051. Legal holidays

No court shall be held on Sunday or any day designated for the annual Thanksgiving; or for the choice of presidential electors; New Year's Day, January 1st; Washington's Birthday, February 22nd the 3rd Monday in February; the 19th day of April; the 30th day of May Patriot's Day, the 3rd Monday in April; Memorial Day, the last Monday in May; the 4th of July; Labor Day, the first Monday of September; the day of the state-wide primary election; the day of the state election; the day of any special state-wide election; Veterans Day, November 11th the 4th Monday in October; or on Christmas Day; and when the time fixed for a term of court falls on any of said days, it shall stand adjourned until the next day, which shall be deemed the first day of the term for all purposes. The public offices in county buildings may be closed to business on the above-named holidays. When any one of the above-named holidays falls on Sunday, the Monday following shall be observed as a holiday, with all the privileges applying to any of the days

above named.

Sec. 2. R. S., T. 9, § 131, amended. Section 131 of Title 9 of the Revised Statutes, as amended by section 3 of chapter 323 of the public laws of 1965, is further amended to read as follows:

§ 131. Dates established

Any day of public thanksgiving, mourning or disaster, proclaimed or appointed by the Governor or by the President of the United States, the first day of January, **Washington's Birthday, the 22nd day of 3rd Monday** in February, ~~the 19th day of April~~ **Patriot's Day, the 3rd Monday in April, the 30th day of Memorial Day, the last Monday in May, the 4th day of July, Labor Day, the first Monday of September, Veterans Day, November 11th the 4th Monday in October,** and the 25th day of December are declared to be bank holidays. If a bank holiday ~~the first day of January, the 4th day of July or the 25th day of December~~ falls on Sunday, the following Monday shall be deemed a bank holiday for the purposes of this Title. Any financial institutions institution or credit union under the supervision of the Department of Banks and Banking may close for part of any business day for good cause, on permission of the Bank Commissioner. Any such institution or credit union may close on permission of the commissioner when federal banking institutions are permitted to close.

Sec. 3. R. S., T. 17, § 3204, amended. The first paragraph of section 3204 of Title 17 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

No person, firm or corporation shall, on the Lord's Day, Memorial Day, ~~the 4th Monday of May,~~ July 4th, Labor Day, ~~the first Monday of September, November 11th~~ **Veterans Day, the 4th Monday of October,** Christmas Day and Thanksgiving Day as proclaimed by the Governor, keep open a place of business to the public except for works of necessity, emergency or charity.

Sec. 4. R. S., T. 20, § 801, amended. The first sentence of section 801 of Title 20 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

The following days shall be observed as school holidays, namely: Patriot's Day, ~~April 19th~~ **the 3rd Monday in April;** Memorial Day, ~~May 30th~~ **the last Monday in May;** Independence Day, July 4th; Labor Day, the first Monday in September; Veterans Day, ~~November 11th~~ **the 4th Monday in October;** Christmas Day, December 25th; Thanksgiving and Arbor Day, as appointed by the Governor.

Sec. 5. R. S., T. 20, § 801, amended. The 6th sentence of section 801 of Title 20 of the Revised Statutes, as amended by section 19 of chapter 425 of the public laws of 1967, is further amended to read as follows:

In addition to the foregoing, New Year's Day, January 1st; Washington's Birthday, ~~February 22nd~~ **the 3rd Monday in February;** ~~Columbus Day, October 12th~~ shall, upon vote of the school committee or school directors of any administrative unit, be observed by teachers and pupils of the public schools of said administrative unit by an exercise appropriate thereto, such exercise to be held during such part of the school session as the teacher of each school may designate.

Sec. 6. R. S., T. 25, § 1279, amended. The last paragraph of section 1279 of Title 25 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

No person shall be arrested in a civil action, or mesne process, or execution, or on a warrant for taxes, on the day of annual Thanksgiving, ~~the 19th day of April, the 30th day of May~~ Patriot's Day, the 3rd Monday in April, Memorial Day, the last Monday in May, the 4th day of July, Labor Day, the first Monday of September, Veterans Day, ~~November 11th~~ the 4th Monday in October, or Christmas. On the day of any military training, inspection, review or election, no officer or soldier required by law to attend the same shall be arrested on any such processes.

Director's note: Amended by 1969, Public Laws, chapter 504, section 24-A.

Effective October 1, 1969

Chapter 237

AN ACT Requiring the Licensing of Sewage Treatment Operators.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

R. S., T. 32, c. 62, additional. Title 32 of the Revised Statutes is amended by adding a new chapter 62, to read as follows:

CHAPTER 62

SEWAGE TREATMENT OPERATORS

§ 4171. Definitions

As used in this chapter:

1. Commission. "Commission" shall mean the Water and Air Environmental Improvement Commission.

2. Certificate. "Certificate" shall mean a certificate of competency issued by the commission stating that the applicant has met the requirements for the specified operator classification.

3. Operator. "Operator" shall mean the person who has direct responsibility for the operation of any wastewater treatment plant serving a public purpose. The person who shall be certified shall be the person who has management responsibility over the plant. Shift operators or other employees under the supervision of the manager need not be certified.

4. Wastewater treatment plant. "Wastewater treatment plant" shall mean the facility or group of units provided for the treatment of wastewater, either or both sewage and industrial wastes, and for the reduction and handling of sewage removed from such wastes.